Note:  As new questions and responses are posted, they will be added to the bottom of the previous set of posted questions.  The questions will be separated by the date that the questions and responses are posted.  This allows for a single continuously updated document that contains all questions and responses.

SCNS Draft RFP Questions:  Posted 12-11-2007

Q:  Is physical security (i.e. guard force) a requirement under section 2.3.2 “SN Security”?

A:  No.  NASA is currently running a competition for Agency-wide protective services under the NASA Protective Services Contract (NPSC).  The draft RFP which was posted on November 28, 2007, reflects this decision to remove the requirement for physical security (i.e. guard force) from the SCNS solicitation.  

Q:  Currently, Volume 5 of the White Sands Complex Handbook is available on the SCNS Procurement Library.  Will NASA post additional volumes of this handbook to the Procurement Library?

A:  NASA is working to make additional volumes available for review.  Please continue to check the Procurement Library for updated files as well as monitor NAIS for potential announcements concerning file availability.  

Q:  Will NASA be posting any additional Operations and Maintenance documents for the Space Network, Ground Network, and VLBI Network?

A:  NASA is working to make additional Operations and Maintenance documents for the Space Network, Ground Network, and VLBI Network available for review.  Please continue to check the Procurement Library for updated files as well as monitor NAIS for potential announcements concerning file availability.  

Q:  Is there a new procurement (outside of SCNS) that will provide modernization of the SN ground network that might reduce NENS?

A:  At this time the Government has not finalized a procurement strategy for this effort.  It is possible that modernization may happen under a separate contract, or as an IDIQ task under SCNS, or a combination of both.  

Q:  Is GSFC studying the modernization effort now with a procurement happening approximately 2009? Does this affect the MOMS contract?

A:  At this time the Government has not finalized a procurement strategy for this effort.  It is possible that modernization may happen under a separate contract, or as an IDIQ task under SCNS, or a combination of both.  It is not anticipated at this time that these efforts would have any effect on the MOMS contract.

Q:  Will NASA be posting an additional policies and directives related to the certification and security processes for the commercial ground networks supporting NASA?

A:  External System Identification and IT Security Requirements - ITS-SOP-0033, was posted to the SCNS Procurement Library on December 6, 2007. 

Q:  Is the SCNS acquisition restricted to Small Business Concerns?

A:  In collaboration with the Small Business Office at GSFC, the SCNS Contracting Officer, made a final determination that the SCNS procurement would be conducted as a Full and Open Competition.

Q:  Is the work under SCNS related to IT Network and software development?

A:  The statement of work does include requirements for IT Network and software development efforts.
Q:  The table provided on page 133 which is a part of L.11, Proposal Preparation – General Instructions, of the DRFP, shows a page limitation of 200 pages for the Mission Suitability proposal.  However, farther down in the table, additional limitations are shown for five components of the Mission Suitability proposal, as follows:

· IDIQ Position Qualifications:  1 page per position qualification

· RTO #1 Task Implementation Plan:  30 pages

· RTO #2 Task Implementation Plan:  15 pages

· RTO #3 Task Implementation Plan:  15 pages

· RTO #4 Study Paper:  15 pages

Are these five items included in the overall 200 pages of the Mission Suitability proposal, or are they in addition to that limit?

A:  The additional pages accounted for in the five items listed above, are considered separate from the 200 page count limitation provided for Mission Suitability proposal.

Q:  Will NASA posting the following documents to the Procurement Library?

· Detailed design documents for all the SN hardware and software

· Documentation for the as-built SNE hardware and software

· Documentation from the SNE Spiral 1 Operations Readiness Review (28 Jun 07)

· NASA-STD-2804, Minimum Interoperability Software Suite

· NASA-STD-2805, Minimum Hardware Configurations

· NASA-STD-2808, Interoperability Profile for NASA Email Clients

· NPR 1600.1, NASA Security Program Procedural Requirements w/Change 1 (11/08/2005)

· NPR 2810.1A, Security of Information Technology for Mission Information

A:  NASA is working to make detailed design documents for all the SN hardware and software; documentation for the as-built SNE hardware and software; available for review.  Please continue to check the Procurement Library for updated files as well as monitor NAIS for potential announcements concerning file availability.  

Documentation from the SNE Spiral 1 Operations Readiness Review (28 Jun 07); NASA-STD-2804; and NASA-STD-2805 have been uploaded to the Procurement Library on December 6, 2007.  

NPR 1600.1 and NPR 2810.1A were uploaded to the Procurement Library on December 10, 2007.

Upon further review of NASA-STD-2808, NASA has found that the information presented is inconsistent with the way NASA current operates its email.  Accordingly, reference to NASA-STD-2808 found in Clause J.1 – Attachment B – Contract Data Requirements List, Data Requirements Description (DRD) 1.3-a, titled Integrated Management Plan, under the section entitled Applicable Documents will be removed from the final RFP.  

Q:  The Library document GN Overview Presentation2.ppt dated September 11, 2007; Page 9 states "Extend current NENS commercial services sub-contracts through September 2009 and assign to SCNS for technical continuity".  Will commercial service tracking subcontracts negotiated by the NENS contractor be assumable by the winning SCNS contractor?  Will the winning SCNS contractor be required to utilize these subcontracts, or will they be free to propose alternate solutions in the first year?

A:  The NENS contractor has been directed to negotiate commercial service tracking subcontracts through September 30th, 2009 and they will be assumable by the winning Offeror.

After award, the SCNS contractor may propose alternate solutions, but the Government requires consent per (52.244-2) SUBCONTRACTS (JUN 2007) (d) Subcontracts greater than $1 Million; Subcontracts of any value for consultants, temporary labor, or ground network space communication services.

Q:  Is the IT and Communications Services requirement advertised under RFI #RFINNG07210401LGAZ the same as the SCNS requirement advertised under draft solicitation #NNG08218142J?

A:  No.  The RFI posted for the IT and Communications Services requirement was for a separate requirement at NASA/GSFC.  Questions pertaining the IT and Communications Services requirement should be directed to LaShawn Davis via email. (LaShawn.K.Davis@nasa.gov) 

Q:  Will a list of attendees for the Pre-Solicitation Conference held at Goddard Space Flight Center be published?

A:  Yes.  A posting contain the Pre-Solicitation Conference attendees was posted on the NAIS website on December 11, 2007.

Q:  For the Past Performance Volume, $7,000,000 is a high subcontractor threshold – especially for small disadvantaged business.  Would the Government consider reducing the threshold to $3,000,000?

A:  The Government will take this suggestion into consideration for the final RFP.  

Q:  Will on-going development tasks be transitioned to the new contract?

A:  The Government anticipates that most developmental tasks will transition.  However, it is possible that there may be some limited number of exceptions.

Q:  Request that the WBS and dictionary be excluded from the 200 page restriction for Mission Suitability.

A:  Both of these items will be excluded from the 200 page count restriction for Mission Suitability in the final RFP.

SCNS Draft RFP Questions:  Posted 12-14-2007
Q:  Section H.13 identified a Program Manager as a Key Personnel Position. Section L.14 and M.4 refer to a Program Director.  Are these two positions the same?  If so, please indicate the preferred position title.

A:  Yes, the Program Manager referenced in H.13 and the Program Director referenced in Section L.14 and M.4 are considered the same position.  The final RFP will be revised to change the Program Director title referenced in Section L.14 and M.4 to Program Manager for consistency.  

Q:  Section L.11(b)(2) specifies that text in diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs be no smaller than 10 pt.  Would the Government consider that text in diagrams, charts, artwork, and photographs be no smaller than 8 pt.? (Tables would remain subject to the 10 pt. limit.)

A:  Text in diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10pt.  
Q:  Section L.11(a)(5) states that the format for each volume shall parallel the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M. Section L.15(A) states that the Cost volume structure must follow the instructions “herein,” i.e. L.15. Please clarify 

A:  For the Final RFP the Government will revise Section L.11(a)(5) as follows:

From:

(5)  The format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M of this solicitation.  

To:

(5)  The format for the Mission Suitability proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M of this solicitation.

Q:  Section J.1 requires a single Small Business Subcontracting Plan (Attachment F). The page allocation table in Section L.11(b)(1) lists a Small Business Participation Plan in addition to a Small Business Subcontracting Plan. Did the Government intend that the SDB Part/Utilization be described in Subfactor D, separate from the SB Subcontracting Plan?

A:  The Government will remove “Small Business Participation Plan” from the table provided in L.11(b)(1) in the Final RFP.
Q:  The table in Section L.14 Subfactor D (a)(2) specifies a total Small Business goal of 2.5%. This total goal is less than the sum of the goals for the SB subcategories (17.5%). Is the total SB goal of 2.5% in error? If so, please provide the actual government SB goal.

A:  The total Subcontracting Goal for the SCNS Contract is 20%.  The Small Business goal of 2.5% is a goal established for small businesses other than the small business categories listed on the rest of the table.  


The Final RFP will be revised as follows to clarify the table:

	Total Small Business Subcontracting Goal
	20%

	
	

	The following subcategories are inclusive of the above Small Business percentage
	

	Women Owned Small Business Concerns
	4.5%

	*Small Disadvantaged Business Concerns
(Includes SDB’s in both targeted and non-targeted areas.)
	10.0%

	Veteran Owned Small Business Concerns
	1.5%

	Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Business Concerns
	.5%

	HUBZone Small Business Concerns
	.5%

	Historically Black Colleges and Universities
	.5%

	Other Small Business Concerns
	2.5%


Q:  We recommend that the following proposal deliverables be explicitly excluded from the Mission Suitability page count of 200 and listed in row 5 of the page limitation table in Section L.11(b)(1).

- WBS and Dictionary (DRD 1.2-a)

- Integrated Management Plan (DRD 1.3-a)

- Security Management Plan (DRD 1.10-a)

- IDIQ Position Qualifications (Attachment K)

- Government Property & Logistics Management Plan (Attachment P)

- RTO responses

- Key Personnel resumes

A:  The Government will revise the table in Section L.11(b)(1) in the final RFP to reflect the following:

- The WBS and the Dictionary (DRD 1.2-a) will be excluded from the 200 page count restriction for Mission Suitability in the final RFP. 

- Integrated Management Plan (DRD 1.3-a) is included in the 200 page count restriction for Mission Suitability in the final RFP.
- Security Management Plan (DRD 1.10-a) will be excluded from the 200 page count restriction for Mission Suitability in the final RFP.
- DRD 1.8-a The Government Property Management Plan shall be delivered during Phase-In and is not part of the Proposal.
- For IDIQ Position Qualifications (Attachment K) and RTO responses, refer to Question #9 previously posted in NAIS.
- Key Personnel resumes are included in the 200 page count restriction for Mission Suitability in the final RFP.

Q:  Is the contractor required to escalate the union and non exempt wage determined rates included in the Attachment C rate schedule for the specified contract performance period or will the Attachment C rates be renegotiated upon union negotiations and DOL wage determination updates once on contract?

A:  Attachment C rates will be renegotiated upon union negotiations and DOL wage determination updates once on contract.

Q:  In Section M.5 e. the last sentence of the paragraph reads as follows:

“The Offeror's phase in price”

It appears that this sentence is incomplete.  Please clarify.

A:  The Government will revise the following paragraphs in Section M.5.e COST EVALUATION FACTOR in the Final RFP as follows:

From:
Total Contract Proposed and Probable Cost (Core Requirement & Government Pricing Model):  The Offeror’s total proposed pricing (including proposed fee) of the Core requirement; and the total proposed pricing (including proposed fee) of the Government Pricing Model, based on the application of the Government’s estimated hours to the Offeror’s Total Composite Contract (prime/sub) Loaded Rates that were proposed in Exhibits 8a and 8b, in addition to the Offeror proposed Other Direct Costs included in Exhibit 10. 

The SSA will also be provided with the basis for any RTO Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment.  However, the total proposed and probable RTO CPAF amount will not be shown to the SSA. 
The Offeror's phase in price

To:
Total Contract Proposed and Probable Cost (Core Requirement & Government Pricing Model):  The Offeror’s total proposed pricing (including proposed fee) of the Core requirement (including proposed Phase-In cost); and the total proposed pricing (including proposed fee) of the Government Pricing Model, based on the application of the Government’s estimated hours to the Offeror’s Total Composite Contract (prime/sub) Loaded Rates that were proposed in Exhibits 8a and 8b, in addition to the Offeror proposed Other Direct Costs included in Exhibit 10.  
The SSA will also be provided with the basis for any RTO Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment.  However, the total proposed and probable RTO CPAF amount will not be shown to the SSA.
Q:  Section J.1 lists Attachment P Government Property & Logistics Management Plan as To Be Proposed. DRD 1.8-a in Attachment B CDRL states that the Government Property Management Plan is to be delivered during Phase-In. Are these two deliverables are same? If so, please confirm that the plan is to be delivered with the proposal.

A:  Yes, these are the same deliverables.  The Government will revise the Title of DRD 1.8-a to “The Government Property Management Plan”.  As required by DRD 1.8-a, this plan shall be delivered during Phase-In.  

Q:  In CDRL 1.10-a, Security Management Plan, on Page 35 of 38, the CONTENTS description for the Security Management Plan ends in mid-sentence at the bottom of the page.  Please Clarify.

A:  The Government will revise the sentence found in CDRL 1.10-a, Security Management Plan, on Page 35 of 38, under the CONTENTS description as follows in the Final RFP:


From:

The Contractor shall incorporate review comments, as applicable, into the Security

To:

The Contractor shall incorporate review comments, as applicable, into the Security Management Plan.

Q:  It appears that the Westford site included in footnote (5) in Enclosure 6 – SCNS WBS is missing.  Should this site be added? 

A:  Yes.  The Government will revise the final RFP to include in footnote (5) in Enclosure 6 – SCNS WBS to add the Westford site.

Q:  In Exhibit 5 – Proposed Staffing Plan, Is the Company Position Title column equal to or synonymous with the Offeror’s Labor Category as referenced in other exhibits?

A:  Yes.  The Government will revise the final RFP Exhibit 5 Company Position Title column to say “Offeror’s Labor Category”.

Q:  In the event a new Wage Determination is added or a new Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) is negotiated during the performance of the SCNS Contract, will the Contractor be allowed to modify Attachment C to reflect rate changes listed in the incorporated Wage Determination and/or new CBA?

A:  Yes, the Government will modify the contract to update the Attachment C labor rates upon the issuance of new wage determinations.  In addition, upon approval of new Collective Bargaining Agreements, the Government will modify Attachment C to reflect new rates.

Q:  Section H.17 states: “If during the performance of the IDIQ contract requirements, the Contractor requires direct labor category qualifications other than those set forth in Attachment K, the Attachment may be modified appropriately, if warranted, by mutual agreement of the parties to this contract.”  If the Contractor is allowed to modify Attachment K, can the Offeror assume they will also be allowed to add an Attachment C rate for the added labor category?

A:  Yes.  If, by mutual agreement, Attachment K is modified, the Government will also modify Attachment C to add the new labor category.
Q:  When can we expect the Department of Labor – Wage Determinations to be provided?

A:  The Government will provide the Department of Labor – Wage Determinations as soon as they are available from the Department of Labor.
Q:  The Government IDIQ job descriptions for the Field Engineering Specialist I & II require the same minimum education and experience, please clarify that this is correct.

A:  The Government will revise the Final RFP to delineate the two job descriptions by deleting the requirement for 5-years of directly related experience for Field Engineering Specialist I.

Q:  In DRD 1.6-c, there is an apparent conflict for the Formal IBR due date as specified in the DRD.  “Initial Submission:  The formal IBR shall be scheduled NLT 150 calendar days after award of a task requiring EVMS.”  “Contents:  The formal IBR shall be scheduled NLT 180 calendar days after contract award…”  Please clarify.

A:  The Final RFP DRD 1.6-c will be modified to reflect the change described below:

FROM

The Contractor shall ensure proper flowdown of this requirement to subcontractors per NPR7120.5.. 

The formal IBR shall be scheduled NLT 180 calendar days after contract award and, as needed, after the exercise of significant contract options, or NLT 60 calendar days after a significant funding or work scope realignment.  The data package shall be delivered not less than six weeks prior to the IBR.

An example of the contents of a typical IBR Notebook is provided below:

TO:

The Contractor shall ensure proper flowdown of this requirement to subcontractors per NPR7120.5.

An example of the contents of a typical IBR Notebook is provided below:

Q:  In DRD 1.5-a, in the Frequency Table, there are two items numbered “6” and items 9 and 10 appear to be referenced as items 10 and 11 in the notes.

A:  In the Final RFP the Government will renumber the Frequency of Submission Table, correcting Items 6 – 10 as Items 7 – 11.
Q:  There are two sections of the SOW numbered 3.6, VLBI and ESTL.

A:  Section 3.6 VLBI is numbered correctly.  In the final RFP, the Government will renumber the ESTL paragraph from 3.6 to 3.7 and the Operations Support Services paragraph from 3.7 to 3.8.  Also, the Government will renumber the NASA Integrated Services Network (NISN) Interface paragraph from 3.7.1 to 3.8.1, the Mission Unique Equipment paragraph from 3.7.2 to 3.8.2, the Facilities Operations and Maintenance paragraph from 3.7.3 to 3.8.3, the Alternate Wide Area Network Services paragraph from 3.7.4 to 3.8.4, and the IT Security paragraph from 3.7.5 to 3.8.5.

Q:  Does the Government require a Basis of Estimate (BOE) for the Cost Model?
A:  The Government does not require that BOEs be submitted for the Cost Model response.

Q:  We recommend that FAR 52.232-22, Limitation of Funds, clause be revised for Task Orders as follows:

· Change the 60-day period to 30 days. 

· Change 75% to 85%.

A:  The Government will revise the final RFP to include FAR Clause 52.232-22, Limitation of Funds in full text.  The Government will revise paragraph (c) as follows:



From: 

(c) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer in writing whenever it has reason to believe that the costs it expects to incur under this contract in the next 60 days, when added to all costs previously incurred, will exceed 75 percent of (1) the total amount so far allotted to the contract by the Government or, (2) if this is a cost-sharing contract, the amount then allotted to the contract by the Government plus the Contractor's corresponding share. The notice shall state the estimated amount of additional funds required to continue performance for the period specified in the Schedule.



To:

(c) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer in writing whenever it has reason to believe that the costs it expects to incur under this contract in the next 30 days, when added to all costs previously incurred, will exceed 85 percent of (1) the total amount so far allotted to the contract by the Government or, (2) if this is a cost-sharing contract, the amount then allotted to the contract by the Government plus the Contractor's corresponding share. The notice shall state the estimated amount of additional funds required to continue performance for the period specified in the Schedule.
Q:  TDRS K/L is included in the SOW under SN Core. The specifics of this work remain undefined until award of the TDRS K/L contract. Does the Government intend for the Offerors to price the K/L incorporation. If so, please provide cost assumptions data.

A:  The Government will revise the Final RFP by making a modification in the Statement of Work (SOW) paragraph 2.1.1.  The Government will delete the 2nd sentence “Also, the Contractor shall transfer into operations any new TDRS that are added to the fleet and work with the TDRS-K/L Contractor to integrate SGLT updates to accommodate TDRS-K/L operations.”  
NASA anticipates issuing an IDIQ Task Order to integrate the SGLT upgrade.  Also, if necessary, the Government would execute a contract modification upon adding requirements TDRS-K/L operations.

Q:  Although the procurement library has information on NOMAD, the Draft RFP is silent to this.  What is the requirement for use of NOMAD in the SCNS contract?

A:   In the Final RFP, the SOW section 1.3 will be changed to add "All Contractor employees with NASA badges whose computer systems are normally directly connected to a NASA network using NASA Internet Protocol (IP) address space shall participate in the NASA Operational Messaging and Directory Service (NOMAD) .  NOMAD accounts shall be furnished by the Government."

Q:  Please clarify what the Government means by WBS Level 4 throughout section L.15?


A:  Examples of WBS Level 4 are 1.1.1, 1.1.2, 1.1.3, etc.


SCNS Draft RFP Questions:  Posted 12-19-2007
Government Revision to Question 40.  

The Government will revise all references to WBS Level 4 throughout section L.15 of the Final RFP to be WBS Level 3.  Examples of WBS Level 3 are 1.1.1, 1.1.2, 1.1.3, etc.

Q:  The Government provided IDIQ Labor Categories appear to be very different from the Incumbent Labor Categories, how can the Offeror determine that labor rates are equivalent for incumbent capture purposes?

A:  The SCNS Government provided Position Descriptions (PDs) are different from many of the NENS PDs.  The NENS Contract PDs have been posted to SCNS Procurement Library in the Code 450\Other folder.  Offerors must match NENS PDs to SCNS PDs to determine the equivalent labor rates.
Q:  Would the Government consider replacing the current Government evaluation labor categories in the IDIQ cost evaluation model with the current NENS common labor categories as provided in the DRFP for all bidders? This would ensure cost realism of direct labor rates for Government evaluation purposes. The linkage between the current NENS categories and the Government labor categories is not clear due to the absence of entry/junior level position qualifications in the Government categories.

A:  No, it is the Offeror’s responsibility to match the Offeror’s proposed Labor Categories with the Government provided labor categories.  The following are some examples of entry/junior level positions in the Government provided Position Descriptions that do not have any experience requirements: Business Administration - Level I, Configuration Management Specialist - Level I; Electrical Engineer - Level I; Engineering COOP; Field Engineering Specialist - Level I (refer to Question #32).
Q:  In DRD 1.5-a, in note 10 for item 9 Contract Status, will the Government provide guidance for content/criteria similar to the guidance provided for other items in this list? 

A:  The Government will revise note 10 in final RFP in its entirety to read as follows:

CO, COTR, and Financial Manager meetings with Contractor counterparts.

Meeting content shall be determined by the CO and may vary by the type, number and complexity of contract action and issues.  The CO may elect to hold face-to-face meeting, work via email, or cancel meetings as he/she deems prudent.
Q:  What is the basis for 115 days for the cost overrun proposal submission?  We recommend that the proposal submission for overruns be consistent with FAR 52.232-22, Limitation of Funds, clause.

A:  The Government requires the submission of the cost overrun proposal 115 days before the incurred costs are expected to exceed the estimated cost to allow adequate time for the Government to evaluate the proposal and to mutually establish any increase in estimated cost with the Contractor.
Q:  Section B.5 LIMITATION OF INDIRECT COSTS (GSFC 52.231‑90)(JUL 2006), page 5.  NASA/GSFC unique FAR clauses for GSFC 52.231-90 imply that aggregation of indirect rates could be permitted. However, the clause contained in the Draft RFP does not allow for aggregation.  The Contractor needs some flexibility to manage its indirect rate structures in order to make prudent business decisions for the overall performance of the contract.  Please clarify if aggregation will be an acceptable practice under the SCNS contract. 

A:  Aggregation of indirect rates will not be permitted under the SCNS contract.
Q:  Clause H.13, page 76, designates 5 Key Personnel.  Designation of Key Personnel has been deleted from recent IDIQ Performance Based Contracts (PBC), with the rationale that it is inappropriate for the Government to dictate contractor management positions on these types of contracts.  In effect, this dictates a significant performance aspect of the contract, rather than allowing the contractor to manage the contract to meet the Government's stated objectives.  We request that the Key Personnel clause be eliminated.  

A:  Given the scope and complexity of the work anticipated to be performed under this contract for the Core and IDIQ structure, the Key Personnel clause is appropriate and shall be a requirement.
Q:  Section L.14.2, page 141. The RFP states that the cost proposal for the Core Requirement must follow the WBS structure contained in Enclosure 6, which is broken down into 3 levels.  In Section L.15 (1) Schedules, Schedule A (page 169), the offeror is to summarize the direct labor hours by labor category” at Level 4 of the WBS (i.e. 1.1.1, 1.1.2, etc.)”.  Is the offeror to follow the Enclosure 6 WBS and therefore price Schedule A at Level 3 of the WBS?

A:  Language in the Final RFP will be revised to reflect WBS Level 3 for proposed cost and BOE submission.   Examples of WBS Level 3 are 1.1.1, 1.1.2, 1.1.3, etc.  
Q:  Section L.14.3, page 145 states that “The Offeror shall provide an Integrated Management Plan in accordance with DRD 1.3-a.  Comments:  In our approach, the Integrated Management Plan should be closely coupled with the planned NASA management approach.  As a non-incumbent on the current NENS contract, it is difficult to obtain details about NASA’s plans and approaches both in the near and far-term.   We recommend the plan be developed in conjunction with NASA Code 450 (and Code 450 customer) staff during the 90-Day Transition Period.  The Offeror’s response to Subfactor B should provide NASA with sufficient information as to proposed Management and Staffing Approaches.  Will NASA consider removing the requirement for DRD 1.3-a as a deliverable with the SCNS Proposal?

A:  No, DRD 1.3-a will be required to be submitted with the proposal.  The SCNS is a performance based contract. 
Q:  Section L.14.3, last paragraph of Subfactor A instructions, page 145 states that RTO # 4 is an engineering white paper to be delivered as part of the proposal.  The second sentence states “The white paper shall address deliverables, schedules, and estimated costs for each implementation option.”  The last sentence in this paragraph references “Cost Model, Government IDIQ Position Descriptions, Property List, etc.).”  The implication is that the cost estimates should be referenced to these items (.e.g., provide a cost buildup based on detailed labor categories).  We believe that the Government’s intent in RTO # 4 is that cost estimates should be provided by Offeror’s to the degree of fidelity required to support trade studies, not at the level of detail required in a Task Implementation Plan.  Therefore, we recommend that the last sentence in the referenced paragraph be amended to read, “This documentation can be found in the SCNS Reference Library.  ”This modification would not apply to RTOs # 1-3 (earlier paragraph), where the same sentence appears.  RTOs # 1-3 require full Task Implementation Plans.

A:  The Government’s intent in RTO # 4 is that cost estimates should be provided by Offerors to the degree of fidelity required to support trade studies, not at the level of detail required in a Task Implementation Plan.  Therefore, the Final RFP will be modified in Section L.14.3, last paragraph of Subfactor A instructions:
From: 
“This documentation can be found in the SCNS Reference Library and throughout the RFP (Cost Model, Government IDIQ Position Descriptions, Property List, etc.).”  

To:  
“This documentation can be found in the SCNS Procurement Library.”

Q:  Section L.14, Subfactor C – Safety and Health, page 151.  We believe NPR 8715.3A has been superseded by NPR 8715.3B, entitled NASA General Safety Program Requirements.  Would the Government please confirm this change?

A:  The Final RFP will be modified to reflect NPR 8715.3B NASA General Safety Program Requirements, Expiration Date: April 4, 2012
Q:  Section L.16, pages 174-177.  There is no stated limit as to the number of past performance references that bidders are allowed to submit.  It appears that as many references can be submitted as long as they are maintained within 50 pages.  Is this correct?

A: Yes this is correct.
Q:  In paragraphs 1.3 and 1.8 of the SOW, it states that the “Contractor will utilize Maximo ® version 5.2 or later.”  Does the Government currently own Maximo servers and licenses?  If so, will these servers and licenses be transferred to the incoming contractor upon award of contract or during the transition phase?  Would the Government please identify how much Maximo hardware will be transferred and how many licenses will be transferred?  Would the Government also identify the hardware model numbers and the version number of the licenses?

A:  The Government does not own a Maximo license or the servers that the application runs on.  The Offerors are directed to look in the SNCS Procurement Library for the file, “NENS GFE-SW_submission (10-08-07)” which will be updated prior to the release of the Final RFP.  All property is included in Attachment D - Government Property Listing.  
Q:  WBS Element 3.4.4 VLBI R&D Technology Development.  Should there be a corresponding element for WBS 3.3 Satellite Laser Ranging (SLR)?  RTO # 2 under SLR specifically states, “The Contractor shall provide engineering and testing support for the Next Generation SLR prototype development at GSFC, Greenbelt, MD.”  This statement would imply some type or R&D technology development.

A:  No, an addition to WBS 3.3 Satellite Laser Ranging (SLR) is not required.  R&D technology development work scope is covered in SOW Section 3.1.X, System Engineering and Development.  Additionally, the Final RFP will be modified to remove 3.4.4 VLBI R&D Technology Development from the WBS.
Q:  Page 173 of the proposal says, “For RTO proposal purposes only assume CY1 begins October 9, 2008 and ends October 8, 2009.”  However, the RTOs say the period of the performance is 10/09/08 through 9/30/09.  Would the Government please clarify this inconsistency?

A:  The contract year dates reflect the anticipated calendar dates for contract year 1 period of performance of the SCNS contract.  Contract year 1 dates are provided as a basis for determining which Attachment C rates apply.  The periods of performance of the RTOs do not align with CYs.

Q:  Are there comparable requirement documents to those listed in the Applicable Reference section of RTO-1 that capture Flights 1-7 requirements (ie., requirements for Flights 1-7 TT&C or ground based beam forming)?  The SNUG is referenced by the RTO as requirements document, however it is a user's guide and does not include SGLT requirements.

A:  NASA is working to make additional files available for review.  Please continue to check the Procurement Library for updated files.
Q:  SLR RTO - Co-location survey at GGAO (deliverable 5).  One of the deliverables is to survey Moblas-7.  The SLR RTO also explicitly mentions surveying. The VLBI does not. VLBI deliverable 6 is a survey of all geodetic instruments at GGAO including MV-3, Moblas-7, DORIS, GPS, etc.   Are these really the same items, and should they be under SLR?

A:  These are two separate reports.  The Government expects the contractor to perform a Geodetic Survey for MOBLAS-7 at GGAO and a Co-location survey of all space geodesy instruments (MV-3, MOBLAS-7, DORIS, GPS GODE) at GGAO for the VLBI.  The Government will revise the RTO #2 language to clarify the Government’s intent.  
Q:  Co-location survey at GGAO.  In the SOW, "a dedicated first-order surveying team" is listed under both SLR and VLBI. In the RTO, surveying is listed under SLR, but not under VLBI.  Should there only be one survey of all the geodetic instruments at GGAO?  If so, what subtask should it go under, VLBI or SLR?

A:  No, the Government expects a separate survey for VLBI and for SLR.  The Government will revise the RTO #2 language to clarify the Government’s intent.
Q:  The period of performance (POP) for RTO #3 is 10/9/08 – 9/30/09.  During this period the contractor is expected to develop an approach “for establishing and conducting a competitive procurement that will solicit GN Commercial Services at the most favorable price to the government.  The next paragraph states, “The Contractor shall describe in detail their approach for managing, from both a business and technical perspective, the subcontracts once they are in place.”  Managing the subcontracts implies that the POP would extend beyond 9/30/09.  Would the Government please clarify if managing the subcontracts extends beyond 9/30/09?  If so, would the government please specify (for the purposes of this RTO and for pricing) the period for which subcontract management should take place?

A:  The Government’s intent for RTO 3 is to only receive cost information for the activities related to the procurement of the subcontracts.  The Government only requires a written description from both the technical and business prospective and does not require the submission of cost information related to the management of the subcontracts in the out years.  In the Final RFP, RTO 3 will be revised as follows: 

From:

The Contractor shall describe in detail their approach for managing, from both a business and technical perspective, the subcontracts once they are in place.  This area of the RTO response shall include the costs that the Contractor expends in managing the commercial service providers including innovative business management techniques.  The technical aspect shall address the contractor’s approach for integrating new commercial services into the Network including scheduling, compatibility, integration and test, and certification.

To:

The Contractor shall describe in detail their approach for managing, from both a business and technical perspective, the subcontracts once they are in place.  The Contractor shall include a description of any innovative business management techniques employed.  The technical aspect shall address the contractor’s approach for integrating new commercial services into the Network including scheduling, compatibility, integration and test, and certification.

Q:  It is our understanding that there are Government furnished vehicles or contractor leased vehicles at some of the SCNS sites.  If in fact there are such vehicles, would the Government please provide a complete listing of the GFE vehicles and the contractor leased vehicles.

A:  GFE vehicles are included in the Attachment D - Government Property Listing.  Also, the SCNS Procurement Library contains the monthly vehicle reports for the month of November 2007, which provide insight into GFE vehicles and any potential contractor leased vehicles.  
Q:  In RTO #2 a parenthetical reference is made to the “GPR/FOM definition” of facilities management.  Please provide a definition of FOM or a GPR reference number.

A:  The GMI I 7234.2, Facility Operations Managers has been placed in the SCNS Procurement Library (this GMI is in the process of being superceded by a replacement GPR which is not expected to be available prior to receipt of SCNS proposals).  In the Final RFP RTO#2 shall be modified,

From:

The Contractor shall provide facilities management (GPR/FOM definition) support for the Goddard Geophysical and Astronomical Observatory in Greenbelt, Maryland.

To:

The Contractor shall provide facilities management support (per GMI 7234.2, Facility Operations Managers) for the Goddard Geophysical and Astronomical Observatory in Greenbelt, Maryland.

Q:  The S-band telemetry parameters provided for Spacecraft “Y” are either incorrect or incomplete.  We suspect incomplete as we believe they forgot the EIRP value for the HGA.  Will the government review the parameters and update as needed?

A:  The Government will review the specifications provided in RTO 4 and revise the Final RFP as appropriate. 
Q:  DRD NO.: 1.3-a details the contents of the Integrated Management Plan (IMP) to be submitted with the proposal; however, the first and fourth paragraphs of Section L.14.3 Subfactor B: Management Approach & Compensation and Staffing discuss IMP content that is not consistent with the DRD 1.3-a details.  Please clarify whether the IMP submitted with the proposal should comply with the requirements described in DRD 1.3-a only, or should the IMP also include the additional details requested in Section L.14.3 Subfactor B.

A:  The Integrated Management Plan shall be submitted in accordance with DRD 1.3-a which will be revised to incorporate, into the Contents Section, the requirements currently in the draft RFP found in section L.14.3.  In addition the following paragraph will be removed from the Final RFP, Section L.14.3: 

“The Integrated Management Plan shall discuss interrelationships of technical management, business management, and subcontract management.  Also provide an organizational chart for this program identifying all managerial positions by title, position qualifications, and physical location. The Offeror shall provide a detailed description of the responsibilities and authorities for operation and management of this program, from lower levels through intermediate management to top-level management.  The Offeror should include such elements as the span of control, degree of autonomy, and lines of communication.  All interfaces with NASA personnel, and major subcontractors and/or teaming partners must be clearly delineated.”

Q:  Is physical security (Guard Force) for MILA included as part of the SCNS procurement?

A:  No.  NASA is currently running a competition for Agency-wide protective services under the NASA Protective Services Contract (NPSC) that includes the MILA Guard Force.  
Q:  Some of the Government IDIQ Labor Category Descriptions do not include an “in lieu of education” clause for Education and Experience; however, the Offeror Labor Categories we would like to map to some of these Government Labor Categories do have an “in lieu of education” clause.  Is it acceptable for the Offeror to map our Labor Categories with “in lieu of education” clauses to Government Labor Categories that do not contain “in lieu of education” clauses?”

A:  No, the Government requires that all Offerors provide compliant labor categories. 
Q:  For the Government IDIQ Pricing model (Exhibit 9), is the expectation that all Offeror Labor categories be mapped to the Government direct labor categories or just those in the Offeror’s labor categories that meet the minimum Government labor category descriptions?  For example, the lowest Systems Engineer per the Government model description calls for a B.S. with a minimum of 8 years of experience. Is the Offeror not required to map other levels of Systems Engineers in the Offeror’s proposed labor categories if the experience minimums are less than 8 years?

A:  Yes, it is the Government’s expectation that all proposed Offeror labor categories be mapped to the Government labor categories.  If an Offeror’s proposed labor category title and qualifications do not match the Government provided Position Descriptions titles and Qualifications, the Offeror shall map the proposed labor category to the appropriate Government provided position descriptions based on the Offeror proposed labor category qualifications.  

Q:  In Clause J.1 Attachment C, the government is asking for labor rates (1) and indirect rates (2) by geographic location.  It is unclear how the offeror is to input this information into Exhibit 9 and arrive at a single fully burdened rate for Exhibit 8a which reflects both the geographic locations and the onsite and offsite estimated hours provided in Exhibit 8.  Would the Government please clarify?

A:  The Government will revise the Final RFP to delete the location column from Attachment C item number 2, Prime Indirect Cost Rate Matrix.  In addition the Final RFP Cost Model Exhibits will be revised to allow for calculation of labor rates based on geographic location. 
Q:  The Non-Exempt Wage Determined Positions include Secretary IV and V, however, these positions no longer exist on the current NENS Wage Determination.  Should these be replaced with the title Administrative Assistant?

A:  The Government will revise the final RFP by eliminating the Secretary IV and V position and adding the Administrative Assistant positions and the hours previously associated with the Secretary IV and V positions.  In addition the Government will revise the Enclosure 5 - Government Provided Position Descriptions – IDIQ, to remove the Secretary IV and V Position descriptions and add a position description for an Administrative Assistant.    
Q:  The Draft RFP instructs Offerors to structure the proposal according to Section L, Section M, the WBS, and the SOW in different clauses within Section L.  These instructions appear to be inconsistent.  Will the Gov’t allow flexibility in the proposal structure within each Subfactor in Mission Suitability?

A:  The Government will revise the final RFP to instruct Offerors to structure the Mission Suitability proposal to follow the section M evaluation criteria.  Further, the Government will revise the final RFP to instruct Offerors to structure the Cost Volume proposal to follow the Government provide WBS structure.  
Q:  SOW Section 1.12 specifies the CMMI requirement applies to software engineering management; however, sections E.6, H.16, and M.4 do not make this specification.  Please clarify.

A:  The Government will revise Sections E.6, H.16 and M.4 to include the words software engineering management before the description of CMMI®-SE/SW Capability Level 2 as clarification.
SCNS Draft RFP Questions:  Posted 12-20-2007
Q:  Enclosure 5 (Gov. Provided PDs – IDIQ) contains PDs that have different education and experience requirements for the exempt personnel than the incumbent PDs.  Are the incumbent average direct labor rates valid for the Gov. Provided PDs?
 

A:  The Offerors are reminded that in the Draft RFP L.15  states  “As part of the Government Pricing Model, the Government has provided IDIQ Position Descriptions and estimated hours for all the direct labor anticipated for the Indefinite Delivery/ Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) portion of this contract in Enclosure 5 – Government Provided Position Descriptions - IDIQ.”

The Government has also provided the incumbent’s current direct labor categories and average (prime and major subcontractors) unburdened direct labor hourly rates for those categories being used under the incumbent contract for NENS services.  These Average Labor Rates and incumbent’s Position Descriptions are provided for information purposes only.  Enclosure 5 - Government Provided Position Descriptions – IDIQ, provides the job description, education, and experience required for the Government Contract Direct Labor Categories identified in Exhibits 9a and 9b.  The Government recognizes that the Offeror’s proposed labor categories may vary from those set forth in Enclosure 5 and the current incumbents.  In Exhibits 9a and 9b, the Offeror and ALL subcontractors shall show how their direct labor categories conform/convert to the Government Provided Position Descriptions - IDIQ in Enclosure 5.  When proposing to capture incumbent personnel, Offerors shall clearly explain variances from their proposed unburdened Offeror Direct Labor Rates in Exhibits 9a and 9b and those of the current incumbent’s unburdened rates.
2. REVISION TO QUESTION/ANSWER #60:
Q:  It is our understanding that there are Government furnished vehicles or contractor leased vehicles at some of the SCNS sites.  If in fact there are such vehicles, would the Government please provide a complete listing of the GFE vehicles and the contractor leased vehicles.

A:  GFE vehicles are included in the Attachment D - Government Property Listing.  Also, the SCNS Procurement Library contains the monthly vehicle reports for the month of November 2007, which provide insight into GFE vehicles.  For the Core requirement and the RTOs, the number and type of contractor leased vehicles is to be proposed by the Offeror.  Under the IDIQ requirement the SCNS Contractor will be required to determine the appropriate number and type of contractor leased vehicles, if required, at the time of individual Task Order proposal.
Q:  The DD-254 indicates the need for TS/SCI level clearances.  Please elaborate on the need for cleared people:

· How many people need TS clearances and how many people need SCI?   Please provide answers for each location where these clearances are required.

· Does the WSC Security Office have a separate CAGE Code/FSO from it's corporate HQ?

A:  The Government expects that the Offerors propose an adequate number of personnel with required clearances for the Core requirement.  The number of positions required for the IDIQ requirement will be dependent on the number and scope of individual task orders issued by the Government.

The WSC Security Office does have a separate CAGE Code from its Corporate HQ.  

Q:  The November 28, 2007 Synopsis states that proposals will be due 30 days after the solicitation release date.  A proposal of this magnitude, currently estimated to be around 300 pages, not including the cost proposal is a monumental undertaking in a 30 day period.  We recognize the draft RFP may not change significantly from the final and that potential bidders should be working on their proposals based on the draft.  This is standard practice for most companies.  However, the sheer magnitude of this proposal requires a typical 45-day turn around.  Until the ambiguity and disconnects between the draft and final RFP are clearly defined, potential bidders can go only so far in developing their proposals. We strongly recommend that this period from final RFP release to proposal be changed to 45 days.

A:  The Government finds the 30 days response time reasonable considering the following:

- Draft Technical Docs placed in procurement library in advance of Draft RFP

- Draft RFP released on November 28, 2007 

- Questions from potential Offerors were posted to the NASA Acquisition Internet Service (NAIS) posting site prior to the release of the Final RFP 

- Final RFP to be released in excess of 30 days after the Draft RFP was released

